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NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company (“Vamshi Rubber Limited”) will be 
held on Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 1:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) to transact the following business.  
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
Item No. 1 – Adoption of financial statements 
 
To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 
2025 along with Notes, the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 
 

Item No. 2 – To appoint a director in place of Mr. Varun Kumar Pasham (DIN: 00293972) who retires by Rotation 

at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

Item No. 3 – To Regularize the Appointment of Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671) as Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company. 

 

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution a Special 

Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671) who was appointed as an Additional Independent 

Director of the Company with effective from 14.02.2025 by the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of 

the Company under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (including any statutory modification(s) or 

re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and Articles of Association of the Company, who is eligible for 

appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act 

from a Member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 

Director of the Company.  

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Act (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with 

Schedule IV to the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from 

time to time, the appointment of Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671), who had submitted a declaration that he 

met the criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and who is eligible for appointment as an Independent Director of the Company, is  not liable to retire by 

rotation, for a term of five years, i.e., from 14.02.2025 to 13.02.2030 (both days inclusive), be and is hereby approved.”  

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company and/or any authorized representative of the Company be 

and is hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, things and deeds as may be deemed necessary for giving effect 

to the above stated resolution.” 

 

 



Item No. 4 – Re-appointment of Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu as Managing Director of the Company. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an SPECIAL 

RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 196, 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, also read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force), as approved by the Nomination and remuneration Committee and Board of Directors, 
consent of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu 
(holding DIN: 00294240) as Managing Director of the Company for a period of Three years w.e.f. 01.07.2025 on such 
remuneration, terms and conditions as recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.”  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu, Managing Director will also be entitled for the 
reimbursement of actual entertainment, travelling, boarding and lodging expenses incurred by him in connection with 
the Company's business and such other benefits/amenities and other privileges, as any from time to time, be available 
to other Senior Executives of the Company.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
sign and file the necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things 
as may be necessary to give effect to the foregoing resolution.” 

Item No. 5 – Re-appointment of Mr. Pasham Varun Kumar as Whole-Time Director of the Company. 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an SPECIAL 

RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 196, 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, also read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force), as approved by the Nomination and remuneration Committee and Board of Directors, 
consent of members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Pasham Varun Kumar (DIN: 
00293972) as Whole-Time Director of the Company for a period of Three years w.e.f. 01.07.2025 on such 
remuneration, terms and conditions as recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.”  

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Pasham Varun Kumar, Whole-Time Director will also be entitled for the 
reimbursement of actual entertainment, travelling, boarding and lodging expenses incurred by him in connection with 
the Company's business and such other benefits/amenities and other privileges, as any from time to time, be available 
to other Senior Executives of the Company.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
sign and file the necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things 
as may be necessary to give effect to the foregoing resolution.” 

Item No. 6 – To consider and approve the change in designation of Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari (holding DIN 
07194694), from Independent Director to Non-Executive Director 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an SPECIAL 

RESOLUTION: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and subject to such 
approvals as may be necessary, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to change 



the designation of Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari (DIN: 07194694) from Independent Director to Non-Executive Director 
of the Company, with effect from 01/10/2025, and that she shall henceforth serve in the capacity of a Non-Executive 
Director, liable to retire by rotation. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari shall cease to be classified as an Independent Director and 
shall accordingly no longer be subject to the provisions applicable to Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorised to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, proper, or desirable to give effect to this 
resolution, including filing necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and making appropriate disclosures to the 
stock exchanges, if applicable.” 
 
Item No. 7 – To approve the appointment of Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five years 
starting from Financial Year 2024-25 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Ordinary 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from 
time to time, and subject to such other approvals as may be required, the consent of the members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. NVSS Suryanarayana Rao, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 
F5868; COP No. 2886), Hyderabad, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five years, commencing 
from the financial year 2024-25 to 2028-29 (both inclusive), to conduct the Secretarial Audit under the provisions of the 
Act and applicable regulations, subject to ratification/confirmation by the Board each year and on such remuneration 
as may be mutually agreed upon and as may be determined by the Board of Directors from time to time. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to issue the formal 
letter of appointment and to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things as may be necessary or expedient to give 
effect to this resolution, including filing of necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and making relevant 
disclosures as required under applicable law.” 
 
Item No. 8 – To deliberate and Approve for related party transactions. 
 
To consider and if found fit, to pass with or without modification the undermentioned resolution as an SPECIAL 
RESOLUTION:  
 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'), read with Rule 
15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, Regulation 23 (1) & (4) of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 (the 'Listing Regulations'), the Company's policy on Related Party transactions, and any other 
applicable provisions including any amendments thereto for the time being in force, consent of the members be and is 
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) 
executed with Related Parties of the entity  on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem fit, up 
to a maximum aggregate value of Rs. 50 Crores for the financial year 2025-26. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such other 
acts, deeds and things and sign and execute and file such papers and documents as may be necessary to give effect 
to this resolution and for matter connected therewith or incidental thereto.” 
 
 
 
 



 

By order of the Board 
                  For Vamshi Rubber Limited 

            
 

 Sd/- 
Date: 14th August, 2025                                         R. Surendra Reddy 

Place: Hyderabad                           Managing Director and CEO 
                    DIN: 00294240 

 
 
 
NOTES: 

 
1. Pursuant to the General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, in relation 

to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013”, 
General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, 09/2023 dated 
September 25, 2023 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 09/2024 dated September 
19, 2024 in relation to “Clarification on holding of Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) through Video Conferencing 
(VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)” issued by the SEBI (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the 
Circulars”), companies are allowed to hold AGM through VC, without the physical presence of members at a 
common venue. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”). 
 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this 
AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has 
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available 
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, the 
Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and 
participate thereat and cast their votes through e-voting. 
 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode shall be open 15 minutes before the time schedule 
i.e., 12:45 P.M on Thursday, 25th  Day of September, 2025 by clicking on the link at 
https://www.evotingindia.com/ under members login, where EVSN of the Company will be displayed by using 
the Remote E-voting Credentials and by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served 
basis. This will not include large shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc., who are 
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction of first come first served basis. 
 

4. The attendance of Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020, January 13, 2021 the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 
this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
(CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes 
by a member using remote e- voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided 
by CDSL. 

https://www.evotingindia.com/


 
6. In line with Ministry of Corporate Affairs circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice of the 31st  AGM 

and the Annual Report for 2024-2025 will be available on the Company’s website www.vamshirubber.org for 
download. The notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of CDSL i.e., 
www.evotingindia.com. 

 
7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting should register 

themselves as a speaker by sending a request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, 
email id, mobile number at info@vamshirubber.org latest by 5.00 P.M. on Wednesday, 17th September, 2025. 
 

8. Shareholders who have queries may send their questions in advance mentioning their name, Demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at info@vamshirubber.org latest by 5.00 P.M. on Wednesday, 
17th September, 2025. 

 
9. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker and confirmed by Company will only be 

allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

10. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in respect of the 
items of Special Business as set out above is annexed hereto. 
 

11. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will 
be entitled to vote at the Meeting.  

 
12. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant to 

Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the relevant 
Board Resolution together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to 
attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

 
13. Members intending to seek clarification at the Annual General Meeting concerning the accounts and any 

aspect of operations of the company are requested to send their questions in writing to the Company so as to 
reach the company at least 10 (Ten) days in advance before the date of the Annual General Meeting, specifying 
the points. 
 

14. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate the following details directly to the 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. CIL Securities Limited, 214, Raghava Ratna Towers, 
Chirag Ali Lane, Hyderabad – 500 001, Telangana. 
 

i. Bank Mandate with full particulars for remittance of dividend directly into their bank accounts, if declared at 
the meeting. 

ii. Changes, if any, in their address at an early date. 
iii. Application for consolidation of folios, if shareholdings are under multiple folios. 
iv. Despatch of share certificates for consolidation. 
v. Request for nomination forms for making nominations as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 

 
15. Members are requested to quote ledger folio numbers in all their correspondences. 

 
16. Members holding shares in dematerialized form (electronic form) are requested to intimate any changes in 

their respective addresses, bank mandates etc., directly to their respective Depository Participants. 
 

17. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to the Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their 

http://www.evotingindia.com/


Demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company/ 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. CIL Securities. 
 

18. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, a member of the company may nominate a person on 
whom the shares held by him/her shall vest in the event of his/her death. Members desirous of availing this 
facility may submit nomination in prescribed Form-SH-13 to the company/RTA in case shares are held in 
physical form, and to their respective depository participant, if held in electronic form.  
 

19. Details under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
form an integral part of the notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite declarations for their 
appointment/re-appointment.  
 

20. Any director himself or any member intending to propose any person as a director other than a retiring director, 
has to give a notice as to his intention to propose him/her as a candidate for that office not less 14 (fourteen) 
days before the meeting along with deposit of such amount as mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
21. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing 

paperless compliances by the companies and has issued circulars stating that service of notice/documents 
including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green initiative of the 
Government in full measure, members are requested to register their e-mail addresses in respect of electronic 
holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants.  Members who hold shares in 
physical form are requested to send their e-mail address to the RTA by an email to rta@cilsecurities.com. 
 

22. The Annual Report for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and Notice of the AGM inter alia indicating the manner 
and process of remote e-voting are being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses 
are registered with the Company/Depositories. Members (Physical / Demat) who have not registered their 
email addresses with the company can get the same registered with the company by requesting in member 
updation form by sending an email to info@vamshirubber.org and rta@cilsecurities.com. Please submit duly 
filled and signed member updation form to the above-mentioned email. Upon verification of the Form the email 
will be registered with the Company till the date of AGM. 
 

23. Members may also note that the Notice of the 31st  AGM and the Annual Report for the financial year ending 
on 31st March, 2025 will also be available on the Company’s website www.vamshirubber.org for download.  
 

24. Considering the social distancing norm to be followed due to wide spreading COVID-19 Pandemic. All 
Documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the Explanatory Statement will be sent to the respective 
shareholder upon receiving the request at the e-mail id info@vamshirubber.org of the Company for inspection 
of the members of the Company. 
 

25. Members are requested to note that the Company’s Equity Shares are compulsorily traded in demat form for 
the investors, effective from 26th March 2001. Members are requested to open Depository Account in their 
names with a Depository participant to dematerialize their holdings. This would be necessary for facilitating 
the transfers of Company’s Equity shares in all Stock Exchanges connected to the Depository System.  
 

26. Members who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to send to 
the Company the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings in 
one folio. The share certificates will be returned to the members after making requisite changes thereon. 
 

27. SEBI has made it mandatory for every participant in the Securities/Capital Market to furnish the details 
of Income Tax Permanent Account Number (PAN). Accordingly, all the shareholders holding shares in 
physical form are requested to submit their details of PAN and Bank Account along with a copy of the 
PAN card and original cancelled cheque leaf /attested bank passbook showing name of account holder 
to M/s CIL Securities Limited. 

mailto:rta@cilsecurities.com
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28. SEBI made it mandatory for all the shareholders to hold the shares in Dematerialization form. Hence, 

all the shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to convert their Physical shares in 
Demat form, so the liquidity of shares is not affected. 
 

29. THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 
 
In accordance with the provision of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, the shareholders may exercise their option to participate through 
electronic voting system and the company is providing the facility for voting by electronic means (remote e-
voting) to all its members.  The company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services Limited 
(CDSL) to provide remote e-voting facilities and enabling the members to cast their vote in a secured manner.  
This facility will be available at the link www.evotingindia.com during the following voting period: 

 
Commencement of remote e-voting : From 09.00 A.M on 22.09.2025 
End of remote e-voting : Up to 05.00 P.M on 24.09.2025 

 
(a) Remote e-voting shall not be allowed beyond 05.00 P.M on 24.09.2025.  During the Remote e-voting 

period, the shareholders of the company, holding shares either in physical form or dematerialized 
form, as on the closing of business hours of the cutoff date, may cast their vote electronically. The 
cut-off date for eligibility for remote e-voting is 18.09.2025. 

 
(b) The company has engaged the services of CDSL as the Authorized Agency to provide remote e-voting 

facilities. 
 

(c) The company has appointed Mr. N.V.S.S. Suryanarayana, Practicing Company Secretary (M. No: 
5868), as ‘scrutinizer’ for conducting and scrutinizing the remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

 
(d) “Voting by electronic means” or “electronic voting system” means a ‘secured system’ based process 

of display of electronic ballots, recording of votes of the members and the number of votes polled in 
favour or against, such that the entire voting exercise by way of electronic means gets registered and 
counted in an electronic registry in the centralized server with adequate ‘cyber security’. 
 
It also helps the shareholders to cast their vote from anywhere and at any time during Remote e-voting 
period.  
 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility 
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their Demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their Demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
The following Statement, as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, sets out all material facts relating 
to the items of Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice dated 14.08.2025: 
 
ITEM NO. 3 
 
To Regularize the Appointment of Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671) as an Independent Director of 

the Company. 

 

Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671) on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
was appointed as the Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 14.02.2025 by the Board in accordance with the Articles 
of Association and Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) and as per the act, Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu 
(DIN: 10934671) holds office up to the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671), 
holds the requisite Knowledge, expertise, experience and Skill for the position of Director. The Board on the 
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of members in the AGM, 
has accorded its consent, to appoint Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671), as the Independent Director of the 
company.  
 
None of the Directors, KMP’s of the company and their relatives thereof are interested in the proposed resolution. The 
Board of Directors recommend passing of the resolution set out in the Item No. 3 of this notice 
 
ITEM NO. 4 
 
Re-appointment of Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu as Managing Director of the Company 
 
Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu (holding DIN: 00294240) who was appointed as Managing Director of the Company for 
a period of Three years by the members in the 28th  Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 21st September, 
2022 whose term of office was expired on 30th June, 2025.  
 
Considering the performance of Director towards the company, Board of Directors on the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration committee at their meeting held on 26th July, 2025 has re-appointed Mr. Surendra 
Reddy Rachervu (holding DIN: 00294240) who was appointed as Managing Director with effect from 01st July, 2025 
for further period of 3 (Three) years subject to the approval of members in the ensuing Annual general meeting of the 
company. 
 
In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, the appointment of Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu (holding 
DIN: 00294240) who was appointed as Chairman and Managing Director is being placed before the Members for their 
approval. 
 
Your Board recommends the resolution at set out in Item No. 4 for approval of the members as Special Resolution. 
 
Except Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
respective relatives, in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 
3 of the Notice. 
 
ITEM NO. 5 
 
Mr. Varun Kumar Pasham who was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of Three years by 
the members in the 28rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September, 2016 whose term of office 
was expired on 21st September, 2022.  
 



Considering the performance of Director towards the company, Board of Directors on the recommendation of 
Nomination and Remuneration committee at their meeting held on 26th July, 2025 has reappointed Mr. Varun Kumar 
Pasham (holding DIN: 00293972) who was appointed as Whole-time Director with effect from 01st July, 2025 for further 
period of 3 (Three) years subjected to the approval of members in the ensuing Annual general meeting of the company. 
 
In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, the appointment of Mr. Varun Kumar Pasham (holding DIN: 
00293972) who was appointed as Whole-time Director is being placed before the Members for their approval. 
 
Your Board recommends the resolution at set out in Item No. 5 for approval of the members as Special  resolution. 
Except Mr. Varun Kumar Pasham, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
respective relatives, in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 
5 of the Notice. 
 
Item No. 6 – To consider and approve the change in designation of Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari (holding DIN 
07194694), from Independent Director to Non-Executive Director 
 
Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari was re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with effect from 30th 
September, 2020, for a second term of five years, which is due to expire on 30th September, 2025, in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder. 
 
Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari has expressed her willingness to continue to serve the Company in a Non-Executive, non-
independent capacity upon the conclusion of her current term as an Independent Director. In view of her continued 
contribution, experience, and expertise, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 14/08/2025 has, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, approved the proposal to change her designation 
from Independent Director to Non-Executive Director with effect from 1st October, 2025, subject to approval of the 
shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
It is hereby clarified that upon such change in designation, Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari shall no longer be considered 
an Independent Director and shall accordingly not be subject to the provisions applicable to Independent Directors 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, such change in designation requires approval of the members 
by way of a special resolution. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives, except Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari, is concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in this Notice. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution set forth in the Notice for approval of the members as a Special Resolution. 
 
Item No. 7 – To approve the appointment of Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a period of five years 
starting from Financial Year 2024-25 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment 
of Mr. NVSS Suryanarayana Rao, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. F5868; COP No. 2886), 
Hyderabad, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a term of five consecutive financial years starting from FY 
2024-25 to FY 2028-29, subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
Mr. NVSS Suryanarayana Rao was earlier appointed as the Secretarial Auditor for the Financial Year 2023-24 and has 
satisfactorily carried out the Secretarial Audit for that period. Based on his performance and professional conduct, the 
Audit Committee has recommended his re-appointment for a further tenure of five years. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 
 



The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the 
members as a Ordinary Resolution. 
 
 
ITEM NO. 8 
 
To deliberate and Approve for related party transactions. 
 
The Company, in the ordinary course of its business, enters into transactions with entities that qualify as Related 
Parties under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (the "Listing Regulations"). Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 15 of the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, mandates 
that any transaction with a Related Party that exceeds the prescribed thresholds requires prior approval of the 
shareholders. 
 
For the financial year 2025-26, the Company anticipates entering into various contracts, arrangements, or transactions 
with Related Parties in the ordinary course of business. These transactions may include, but are not limited to, the 
sale, purchase, or supply of goods or materials, availing or rendering of services, leasing of property, or any other 
transaction(s) as specified under Section 188(1) of the Act. 
 
The aggregate value of these transactions with Related Parties for the financial year 2025-26 is expected to exceed 
the threshold limits specified under the Act and the Listing Regulations, and may reach up to a maximum of ₹50 Crores. 
Accordingly, the Board of Directors seeks approval from the shareholders for entering into these transactions. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives, except for those who are directly or indirectly 
interested in these transactions as related parties, are concerned or interested in the resolution. 
 
The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice for approval by the shareholders 
as Special Resolution. 
 
  



 
PURSUANT TO ABOVE SAID SEBI CIRCULAR, LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL 
MEETINGS FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE IS GIVEN BELOW: 

 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 

page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 

are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and 

click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option 

for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information 

provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see 

e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers i.e., CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit 

the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

 

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

 

3) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com 

home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered 

Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and 

also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.  
 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 

website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will 

be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 

provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit Demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting.  
Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
Demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

 
You can also login using the login credentials of your Demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After 
Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode for any technical issues related to  

     Login through Depository i.e., CDSL and NSDL 

A. LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETING FOR SHAREHOLDERS OTHER 
THAN INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING IN DEMAT FORM & PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDERS. 

 
(i) The shareholders should log on to the remote e-voting website www.evotingindia.com 

 
(ii) Click on Shareholders. 

 
(iii) Now Enter your User ID  

 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
  OR 
Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at 
https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in to 
CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote 
electronically. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 
and 1800 22 44 30   

http://www.evotingindia.com/
https://www.cdslindia.com/
file:///C:/Users/VinodReddy/Downloads/Login - Myeasi
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 
(iv) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 
(v) If you are holding shares in Demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com 

 
(vi)  and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

 
(vii) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both Demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/RTA. 
 

Dividend Bank 
Details 

 OR 
Date of Birth 
(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded 
in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction 
(v). 
 

 
(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

members holding shares in Demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are 
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password 
is to be also used by the Demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are 
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for remote e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. 

 
(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for remote e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Vamshi Rubber Limited on which you choose to vote.  
 

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to 
the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xiv) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 
 

http://www.evotingindia.com/


(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

 
(xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based 

mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Please follow the instructions as 
prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 
THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS 
PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:  

 
a. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

 
b. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 

(DP) 
 
c. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 
 

B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

i. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting 
system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/members 
login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/members 
login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

 
ii. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 

successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
 

iii. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 
 

iv. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 

 
v. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
vi. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves 

as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 4 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, Demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not 
wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 4 days prior to meeting 
mentioning their name, Demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
info@vamshirubber.org. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  

 
vii. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

C. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER: - 
 

i. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote 
e-voting. 

https://www.evotingindia.com/


 
ii. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 

vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible 
to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

 
iii. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 
shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
iv. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 
 

D. NOTE FOR NON – INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS 
 

i. Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on 
to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 
 

ii. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
 

iii. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. 
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
 

iv. The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval 
of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 
  

v. A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the 
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
 

vi. Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; info@vamshirubber.org, if they have voted from 
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob 
Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). 

 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

 
30. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the General Meeting, first count the votes 

cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and the e-voting at the time of 
AGM within a period not exceeding two (2) working days from the conclusion of the meeting make a 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or person 
authorized by the Chairman for counter signature. 
 

31. The Results shall be declared either by the Chairman or by an authorized person of the Chairman and the 
resolution will be deemed to have been passed on the AGM date subject to receipt of the requisite number of 
votes in favour of the Resolution(s). 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:info@vamshirubber.org
http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 
Immediately after declaration of results, the same shall be placed along with the Scrutinizer’s Report on the Company’s 
website and communicated to BSE Limited where the shares of the Company are listed for placing the same on their 
website. 
 
 

 By order of the Board 
                  For Vamshi Rubber Limited 

            
                    Sd/- 

Date: 14th  August, 2025                           R. Surendra Reddy 
Place: Hyderabad                                                                                      Managing Director and CEO 

DIN: 00294240 
                       

  



 
Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment in the 31st Annual General Meeting 

(Pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 

Name of the Director 
 

Mr. Surendra reddy rachervu Mr. Varun Kumar 
Pasham 

Director Identification Number (DIN) 00025101 00293972 

Date of Birth 10/08/1959 03/09/1963 

Nationality Indian Indian 

Date of Appointment on Board 01/07/2007 01/07/2007 

Relationship with other Directors Nil Nil 

Qualification B.Tech B. Com, MBA 

Shareholding in Vamshi Rubber Limited (as on 
31st March, 2025) 

3,52,543 Shares (8.38%) 
3,47,655 Shares 8.26% 

Expertise in specific functional areas Retreading Business Retreading Business 

List of Directorships held in other Companies (as 
on 31st March, 2025) 

 Nil 
Nil 

Memberships / Chairmanship of the Committees 
of Directors of other Companies (as on 31st 

March, 2025) 
Nil 

Nil 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 



DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To 
The Members 
Vamshi Rubber Limited 
 
Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 31st Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31st, 2025. 
 
1.  Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company  

The financial statements of the company are as follows: 

                                                                                    (Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Current Year 

31st March, 2025 
Previous Year 

31st March, 2024 

Revenue from Operations 8,576.37 7,742.08 

Other Income 43.00 39.37 

Total Income 8,619.37 7781.45 

Expenses 8,429.37 7,604.08 

Depreciation 101.34 94.99 

Total Expenses 8,530.71 7,699.07 

Profit / (loss) Before exceptional and extraordinary 
items  

88.66 82.38 

Less:  exceptional and extraordinary items 3.41 0.05 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Taxation 85.24 82.32 

Less:  - Current Tax 
          -  Income Tax (Earlier years)     
          - Deferred Tax 

16.87 
0 

0.73 

16.56 
2.95 
1.73 

Profit / (loss) After Tax 67.64 61.08 

 
2. Brief description of the Company’s working during the year/State of Company’s affair 

 
During the year under review, the gross revenue of the Company has been increased to Rs. 8,576.37 Lakhs 
compared to Rs. 7,742.08 Lakhs in the previous year. The expenses of the Company have been increased to Rs. 
8530.71 Lakhs compared to Rs. 7,699.07 Lakhs in the previous year. However, company earned a profit after tax 
of Rs. 67.64 Lakhs for the Current year due to increase in sales as against the profit of Rs. 61.08 lakhs in the 
previous year. 
 

3. Change in the nature of business, if any 
 

There is no change in the nature of business during the year. 
 

4. Change In The Registered Office Of The Company 
 
There was no change in the registered office of the company during the financial year 2024-2025. 

 
5. Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the Financial Position of the Company which have 

occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and 
the date of the report  
 
There are no material changes and commitments after the closure of the financial year, which will affect the 
financial position of the Company. 



 
 
6. Future Outlook 

 
As the retreading business is still not accelerating, the business growth could be restricted to 5 to 10%. 

 
7. Dividend 

 
The Board of Directors has not proposed any dividend for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025. 

 
8. Reserves 

 
There were no transfers to Reserves during the financial year 2024-25. 

 
9. MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS 

 
The Last i.e. the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024 was held on 
23/09/2024 at the Registered Office of the Company. 
 

10. Particulars of the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held during the year 
 
There was no Extra Ordinary General Meeting held during the year under consideration. 
 

11. Share Capital 
 
During the year under review, there has been no change in the Share Capital of the Company. 
  
The Authorized Share Capital of the company is Rs. 4,50,00,000/- divided into 45,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 
10/- (Rupees Ten) each. 
 
The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 is Rs. 4,20,68,000/- divided 
into 42,06,800 equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each. 
 
The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per provisions of 
Section 43(a) (ii) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 
12. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

The Board of directors of your company is duly constituted with three executive directors and three non-executive 
independent directors. 
 
Further, approval of the shareholders is being sought for re-appointment of Mr. Pasham Varun Kumar (DIN: 
00293972), Director, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, and offers 
himself for reappointment in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 read with Articles of Association of the 
Company. 
 
CHANGE IN DIRECTOR / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL DURING THE YEAR 

 

• The Board of Directors of the Company has Appointed Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671) as Non-
Executive Independent Director of the Company with effect from 14th February, 2025. 

 

• The Board of Directors of the Company has accepted the Resignation of Neerudu Sundeep Kumar Reddy 
(DIN: 03610535) Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company with effect from 12th August, 2024. 



 
PROPOSED APPOINTMENTS / RE-APPOINTMENTS IN THE 31st ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

• To appoint a director in place of Mr. Pasham Varun Kumar (DIN: 00293972) who retires by Rotation at this 

Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. 

 

• To Re-appoint Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu (DIN: 00294240) as Managing Director of the company. 

 

• To Re-appoint Mr. Pasham Varun Kumar (DIN: 00293972) as Whole-Time Director of the company. 

 

• To regularize appointment of Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu (DIN: 10934671) as Non-Executive Independent 

Director. 

 

• To approve the change in designation of Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari (holding DIN 07194694), from 

Independent Director to Non-Executive Director 

 
13. Meetings of the Board of Directors 

 
A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. During the year Four (4) Board 
Meetings were convened and held on 29.05.2024, 12.08.2024, 09.11.2024, and 14.02.2025. The intervening gap 
between the Meetings was within the period of 120 days as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Name of Director Number of Meetings attended 

Mr. Mereddy Ramesh Reddy    4/4 

Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu 4/4 

Mr. Varun Kumar Pasham 4/4 

Mr. Neerudu Sandeep Kumar Reddy 1/2 

Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari 3/4 

Mr. Subba Roa Mogili 4/4 

 
14. Board Evaluation 

 
The company believes formal evaluation of the board, its committees and of the individual directors, on an annual 
basis which is potentially effective way to respond to the demand for greater board accountability and effectiveness. 
For the company, evaluation provides an ongoing means for directors to assess their individual and collective 
performance and effectiveness. In addition to the accountability and evaluation, a board and Committee member 
helps in; 
 
a. More effective board process 
b. Better collaboration and communication 
c. Greater clarity with regard to members roles and responsibilities  
d. Improved chairman – managing directors and board relations 
 
The performance of the Board was evaluated after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria such 
as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. 
 
The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members 
on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.  
 
The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017. 
 



At the board meeting followed the meeting of the independent directors and meeting of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its committees, and individual directors was also 
discussed. Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the 
independent director being evaluated. 

 
15.  Declaration by Independent Director(s) 

 
A declaration has been received from all the Independent Directors of the Company that they meet the criteria of 
independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
As per regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Independent 
Directors meeting was held on 30th  May, 2025 which was attended by the Independent Directors for the evaluation 
of the performance of the Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Board.  
 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience and are 
persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions specified in the Act read alongwith the Rules made 
thereunder and are independent of the Management. 

 
16. Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors 

 
The Company through its Senior Managerial personnel familiarised the Independent Directors with the strategy, 
operations, and functions of the Company and new regulations of criteria of independent director eligibility. The 
Independent Directors were also familiarised with their roles, rights and responsibilities, orientation, eligibility 
criteria on Statutory Compliances as a Board Member. Independent directors are also requested to complete their 
independent director registration process to be eligible to continue as independent director in any company.  

 
17. Remuneration Policy 

 
The Company’s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual employee and the 
Company. Through its compensation programme, the Company endeavours to attract, retain, develop and 
motivate a high-performance workforce. The Company follows a compensation mix of fixed pay, benefits and 
performance based variable pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance and the 
performance of the individuals measured through the annual appraisal process.  
 
The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection 
and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration including criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director. The Remuneration Policy is available on the 
website of the Company viz. www.vamshirubber.org . 

 
18. Deposits 

 
The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public under Chapter V of the Act or under the corresponding 
provisions of Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 and no amount of principal or interest was outstanding 
as on the date of Balance Sheet. 

 
19. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 

 
Details of loans and guarantees given and investments made under Section 186 of the Act are given in Notes to 
the Financial Statements. 
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20. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties 
 
There were no material significant related party transactions made by the Company with the Promoters, Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel or the designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large.  
 
There were no contract or arrangements entered by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section 
(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the period under review. Hence Form No. AOC-2 is not 
required to be annexed to Board’s report. 
 
The policy on related party transactions as approved by the board of directors is hosted on the website of the 
company viz. www.vamshirubber.org . 

 
The details of related party disclosures form part of the notes to the financial statements provided in this annual 
report. 

 
21. Particulars of Employees 
 

Details in respect of remuneration paid to employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
as amended, forms part of this report. In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 the same is open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. 
 
Copies of this statement may be obtained by the members by writing to the Company Secretary at the Registered 
Office of the Company. 
 
The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and other details in terms 
of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are enclosed in Annexure - I and forms part of this Report. 

 

22. Constitution of Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee of the Company is duly constituted as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. During 
the year four (4) Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held on 29.05.2024, 12.08.2024, 09.11.2024, and 
14.02.2025. 
 
Audit Committee has acted in accordance with the terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
(i) recommended for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 
(ii) reviewed and monitored the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 
(iii) examination of financial statements and the auditor’s reports thereon; 
(iv) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 
(v) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 
(vi) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 
The Audit Committee consists of a combination of Non-Executive Independent Directors and assists the Board in 
fulfilling its overall responsibilities. 
 
The members of Audit Committee are: 
 
Mrs. Akhila Pushpa Sundari                         Chairman               

Mr. Subba Rao Mogili                            Member 

Mr.  Rajeev Reddy Yathapu   Member 
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• Mr.  Neerudu Sundeep Kumar Reddy, Chairman of Audit Committee of the Company has tendered his 

resignation from Board w.e.f., 14th  August, 2024.  

 

• Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu, Non- Executive Additional Independent Director was appointed on the Board 

on 14th  February, 2025. 

 

• Subsequently, Mrs. Akhila Pushpa Sundari, Non- Executive Independent Director has chaired the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee on 9th November 2024 and Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu, Non- 

Executive Additional Independent Director has been appointed as member of the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee from 30th  May. 2025. 

 

23. Constitution of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company is duly constituted as per Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. During the year Three (3) Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meetings were convened 
and held on 29.05.2024, 12.08.2024, and 14.02.2025. 
 
The members of Nomination & Remuneration Committee are: 
 
Mrs. Akhila Pushpa Sundari   Chairman 
Mr. Neerudu Sandeep Kumar Reddy              Member 
Mr. Subba Rao Mogili   Member 

 

• Mr.  Neerudu Sundeep Kumar Reddy, Chairman of Audit Committee of the Company has tendered his 

resignation from Board w.e.f., 14th  August, 2024.  

 

• Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu, Non- Executive Additional Independent Director was appointed on the Board 

on 14th  February, 2025. 

 

• Subsequently, Mrs. Akhila Pushpa Sundari, Non- Executive Independent Director has chaired the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee on 14th February 2025 and Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu, Non- 

Executive Additional Independent Director has been appointed as member of the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee from 30th  May. 2025. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration policy of the company is provided below: 

 

a) Selection and evaluation of directors: The board has based on the recommendations of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, laid down following policies. 

 

1. Policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director. 

2. Policy for board &amp; independent directors’ evaluation. 

 

b) Performance evaluation of board, committees and directors. 

 

The company believes in a formal evaluation of the board and of the individual directors, on an annual basis, is a 

potentially effective way to respond to the demand for greater board accountability and effectiveness. For the 

company, evaluation provides an ongoing means for directors to assess their individual and collective performance 

and effectiveness. In addition to greater board accountability, evaluation of Board members helps in: 

 



a) More effective board processes. 

b) Better collaboration and communication. 

c) Greater clarity with regard to members roles and responsibilities. 

 

The evaluation process covers the following aspects: 

 

• Self-evaluation of directors. 

• Evaluation of the performance and effectiveness of the board. 

• Evaluation of the performance and effectiveness of the committees. 

• Feedback from the non-executive directors to the Chairperson. 

• Feedback on management support to the board. 

 

24. Statutory Auditors 

 

Ms. Samudrala K & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. S200142), was appointed as statutory 

auditors of the company in the 30th  Annual General Meeting for a period of five years from the conclusion of 30th 

AGM till the conclusion of 35th  AGM..  

 

25. Replies to Auditors’ Report 

 
The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors remarks in their report are 
self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.  

 
26. Reporting of frauds by auditors 

 
During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the audit 
committee, under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instance of fraud committed against the 
company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Directors’ Report. 

 

27. Secretarial Audit Report  
 
In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Mr. NVSS Suryanarayana, Practicing Company 
Secretary has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is 
enclosed as Annexure – II to this report.  

 
  MANAGEMENT RESPONSES TO OBSERVATIONS IN SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
The following are the responses of the management against the observations made by the Secretarial Auditor. 

 

S. No. Observations Management Replies / Response 

1 There are few forms which are filed with 
additional fees 

Management is taking steps to ensure 
such instances do not occur in future 

 The company has delayed in payment of the 
Annual Listing Fees (ALF) for the financial year 

Management is taking steps to ensure 
such instances do not occur in future and 
will also pay the remaining amount soon. 

 
28. Cost Auditors 

 
The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to mandatory Cost Audit does not apply to the 
Company and hence, no Cost Audit is conducted. However, the Company is required to maintain Cost records 
which the Company is maintaining. 



 
29. Internal Audit & Internal Financial Control Systems 

 
The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure all the assets are safeguarded and 
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are authorized, regarded and 
reported correctly. The internal control is supplemented by an extensive program of internal audits, review by 
management and procedures. It is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing 
financial statements and other data, and for maintaining accountability of assets. 
 
During the year, the Company has implemented the suggestions and recommendations of the internal auditor to 
improve the control environment. Their scope of work included review of processes for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company, review of operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal 
control strengths in all areas. Internal Auditors findings are discussed with the process owners and suitable 
corrective actions taken as per the directions of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in 
operations. In the Board meeting held on 30th  May, 2024, company has appointed M/s. V N R & Associates, 
Chartered Accountant, as Internal Auditor of the Company for the F.Y. 2024-25. 

 
30. Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under and 
pursuant to the applicable provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the company has established a 
mechanism through which all stake holders can report the suspected frauds and genuine grievances to the 
appropriate authority. The Whistle blower policy which has been approved by the board of directors of the company 
has been hosted on the website of the company viz. www.vamshirubber.org 
 

31. Secretarial Standards 
 
The Company has complied with all the applicable secretarial standards for the financial year 2024-25. 

 
32. Prevention of Insider Trading 
 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 
securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for 
dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the 
designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company 
and during the period when the Trading Window is closed.  
 
Members of the Board have confirmed compliance with the Code. 

 
33. Risk management policy 

 
Your Company has put in place a risk management policy based on globally recognized standards which enables 
the company to proactively take care of the internal and external risks of the company and ensures smooth 
business operations. 
 
The company’s risk management policy ensures that all its material risk exposures are properly covered, all 
compliance risks are covered and the company’s business growth and financial stability are assured.  Board of 
Directors decide the policies and ensure their implementation to ensure protection of company from any type of 
risks. 

 
34. Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) 

 
Clause (f) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time has mandated the inclusion of BRSR as part of the Annual Report 
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for the top 1000 listed entities based on their market capitalization on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd and National 
Stock Exchange of India Ltd as on the end of financial year. In view of the requirements specified, the company is 
not mandated for the providing the BRSR and hence do not form part of this Report. 
 

35. Annual Return 
 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 effective from 28th August, 2020, has 
dispensed with the requirement to attach extract of Annual Return in form MGT-9 to the Board’s report, provided 
every Company shall place a copy of Annual return on the website of the Company, if any and disclose the web-
link of such Annual return in the Board’s report. 

 
The copy of Annual Return in Form MGT-7 as on March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s website and can 
be accessed at the given web-link  http://www.vamshirubber.org/investor_relation.php 
 

36. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and company’s operations in future 

 
No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and Company’s operations in future. 

 
37. Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Companies 

 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or an Associate Company as on 31.03.2025. 

 
38. Corporate Governance Certificate    

 
As per Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, provisions relating to 
corporate governance are not applicable to your company and therefore, no separate report on corporate 
governance is required.  
 
However, in pursuance of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
a certificate from Mr. N.V.S.S. Suryanarayana, Practicing Company Secretary, that none of the directors on board 
has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is annexed as Annexure-III and forms part of 
this Report. 

 
39. Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forms part of this report and same is annexed as Annexure-IV. 

 
40. Obligation of Company Under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 
 

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees 
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the year 2024-25: 

• No. of complaints received:             - NIL  

• No. of complaints disposed of:        - NIL   
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41. Maternity Benefit Affirmations 
 
The Company confirms that it is fully aware of and remains committed to complying with the provisions of the 
Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. While there are currently no women employees on its rolls, the Company has 
appropriate systems and policies in place to ensure that all statutory benefits under the Act, including paid maternity 
leave, continuity of salary and service during the leave period, nursing breaks, and flexible return-to-work 
arrangements will be extended to eligible women employees as and when applicable. The Company remains 
committed to fostering an inclusive and legally compliant work environment. 
 

42. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
 

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo required to 
be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as 
follows: 

 
(A) Conservation of Energy 

(i) the steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy 

An Electrical Energy units saved during 2024-25 in plant    
transformer’s switching is 6,864 units and cost Rs. 45,646/- by 
taking the following steps.                  
        
Plant Transformer’s partial loading time Charged only single 
transformer and second transformer switching off due to idle 
and load losses on transformer consumed units minimized. 

(ii) the steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy 

- 

(iii) the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment’s 

- 

 
(B) Technology absorption  
 

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption The Company has neither absorbed nor adopted 
any new technology. The Company has also not 
made any innovation in technology other than the 
R&D. 

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution 

No benefits derived in the year under review. 

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during 
the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year)- 

No new technology is imported during the last 
three years. 

(a) the details of technology imported - 

(b) the year of import; - 

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed - 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption 
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof 

- 

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development 

No expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development. 

 
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo (2024-25) 
 

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo during 
the year in terms of actual outflows is as follows: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year 



Expenditure in Foreign Currency:   

On Raw Material 575.89 190.17 

On Machinery Consumables NIL NIL 

On Capital Goods NIL NIL 

Earning in Foreign Currency: 1120.20 854.09 

43. Liquidity 

Your Company maintains sufficient cash to meet our strategic objectives. We clearly understand that the liquidity 
in the Balance Sheet is to ensure balance between earning adequate returns and the need to cover financial and 
business risks. Liquidity also enables your Company to position itself for quick responses to market dynamics. 

44. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)  
 

The provisions w.r.t. CSR is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the Company had not constituted CSR 
committee during the year 2024-25. 
 

45. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
 

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore, there 
were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

 
46. Directors’ Responsibility  

 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your Company make the following 
statements, with the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them:  

 
1. that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2025, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and there have been no material departures from them; 
 

2. that the accounting policies mentioned in notes to Financial Statements have been selected and applied 
consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit of the company for 
the year ended on that date; 
 

3. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

4. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis; 
 

5. that proper internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and such internal 
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 
 

6. that proper systems are in place to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such 
systems are adequate and operating effectively: 

 
47. Listing with Stock Exchanges:  

 
The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI), on 02nd September 2015, has issued SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with an aim to consolidate and streamline the provisions of 
Listing Agreement for different segments of capital market to ensure better enforceability. The said regulations 
were effective from 1st December, 2015. Accordingly, all listed entities were required to enter into the Listing 
Agreement within 6 months from the effective date. The Company entered into Listing Agreement with the BSE 
Limited.   



 
The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2024-25 to BSE where the Company’s 
Shares are listed. 
 

48. Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account  
 
Your Company does not have any shares in the Demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account and 
therefore no disclosure as per Point F of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2015 is required. 
 

49. The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the insolvency and bankruptcy code, 
2016  
 
During the period under review, there was no application made nor any proceeding initiated or pending under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016. 
 

50. The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the 
valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions along with the reasons thereof 
 
During the period under review, there was no one time settlement with any bank. 
 

51. Industry Relations 
 
The company enjoyed cordial relations with its employees during the year under review and the Board appreciates 
the employees across the cadres for their dedicated service to the Company, and looks forward to their continued 
support and higher level of productivity for achieving the targets set for the future. 

 
52. Human Resources  

 
Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets.  
 
Your Company continuously invests in attraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A 
number of programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company thrust is on the 
promotion of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement. 
 

53. Data Privacy, Data Protection, And Cybersecurity 
 

The Company is committed to upholding the highest standards of data privacy and protection. In light of the 
increasing reliance on digital infrastructure, the Company has implemented comprehensive cybersecurity and data 
protection policies, aligned with industry best practices and the evolving regulatory framework, including provisions 
under the Information Technology Act, 2000, and applicable data protection regulations. 
 
Key initiatives undertaken during the year include: 
 
• Deployment of end-to-end encryption and multi-layered security protocols for data storage and transfer. 
 
• Regular third-party cybersecurity audits and vulnerability assessments. 
 
• Employee training programs on data protection and cybersecurity awareness. 
 
• Strict access control mechanisms and implementation of role-based permissions. 
 
• Data breach response protocols in accordance with the CERT-In guidelines. 
 



The Company continues to invest in digital infrastructure to ensure robust protection of stakeholder information 
and business continuity. 

 
54. Appointment of designated person (management and administration) rules 2014 - rule 9 of the companies 

act 2013. 
 
In accordance with Rule 9 of the Appointment of Designated Person (Management and Administration) Rules 
2014, it is essential for the company to designate a responsible individual for ensuring compliance with statutory 
obligations. 
 
The company has proposed and appointed a Designated person in a Board meeting and the same has been 
reported in Annual Return of the company. 
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By order of the Board 
     For Vamshi Rubber Limited 

 
 

 
                                                                                                       Sd/-                                         Sd/- 

R. Surendra Reddy              M. Ramesh Reddy 
Managing Director & CEO            Chairman & CFO 

DIN: 00294240                       DIN: 00025101 
 

 
 
 
Date: 14th August 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annexure – I 



 
Statement of particulars as per Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

personnel) Rules, 2014 
 

Part- A 
 

Information under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rule 5(1) Companies 
(Appointment and remuneration of managerial personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of Directors 

Report for the year ended March 31, 2025 
 

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
company for the financial year: 

 

S. No  Name of the Director Ratio of the remuneration to 
the median remuneration of the 
employees 

1. Mr. M. Ramesh Reddy 17:1 

2. Mr. R. Surendra Reddy 17:1 

3. Mr. P Varun Kumar 17:1 

4. Mr. Subba Rao Mogili NA 

5. Mr. N. Sandeep Kumar Reddy NA 

6. Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari NA 

 
(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager in the financial year: 
 

S. No. Name of the KMP  Percentage increase in 
remuneration 

1. Mr. M. Ramesh Reddy Nil 

2. Mr. R. Surendra Reddy Nil 

3. Mr. P Varun Kumar Nil 

4.  Mr. Subba Roa Mogili Nil 

5. Mr. N. Sandeep Kumar Reddy Nil 

6. Ms. Akhila Pushpa Sundari Nil 

7. Mr. Akash Bhagadia Nil 

 
(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is 3.82% 
 
(iv)The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2025 138 employees 
 
(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration: 
 
Average percentile increase in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial personnel in the financial year 
is 3.82% and there has been increase in the managerial remuneration of Company Secretary during the financial year. 
 
(vi)The Remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 

 
Part-B 

 



 

The particulars of the employees who are covered by the provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and rule 5(3) of Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable 
 

             
            By order of the Board  

                                           For Vamshi Rubber Limited 
    
 
                                                                                                              Sd/-                                        Sd/- 
                R. Surendra Reddy                   M. Ramesh Reddy 

                        Managing Director & CEO            Chairman & CFO 
                       DIN: 00294240                   DIN: 00025101 

 
 
Date: 14th August, 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To 

The Members, 

Vamshi Rubber Limited, 

'Vamshi House', Plot No. 41, 

Jayabheri Enclave, Gachibowli, 

Hyderabad, Telangana-500032. 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 

to good corporate practices by “Vamshi Rubber Limited” (hereinafter called the “Company”). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 

and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 

the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, complied 

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 

the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of: 

 

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made there under and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 which are still in force; 

 

(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

 

(3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed under that Act; 

 

(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; 

 

  Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 

 

(5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

 

a.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; 

 



  Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 

 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations, 

2014; 

 

        Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 

 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; 

 

Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 

 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with Client; 

 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

and 

 

Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 

 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

 

Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 

 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 

 

It is observed that the Company has delayed in filing the Non-Applicability Certificate under 

Regulation 27(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, for the quarter ended March 31, 2025, 

with the stock exchange. The Company is advised to ensure timely compliance in future to 

avoid any regulatory observations. 

 

It is observed that the Company has delayed in payment of the Annual Listing Fees (ALF) 

for the financial year 2024–2025, which was due by April 30, 2024. As per the records, the 

outstanding ALF amounting to ₹3,83,500 remained unpaid as on May 29, 2024. The 

Company is advised to ensure timely payment of statutory dues to avoid non-compliance with 

listing conditions 

  

(6) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the Management 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

 

During the period under review, the company has delayed in filing the certain forms beyond the 

prescribed time with the Registrar of Companies, however filing is duly completed after payment of 

additional fees. 

 

I further report that: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 

of the Act. 



 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 

the meeting. 

 

All the decisions were carried out unanimously and views are duly captured and recorded as part of the 

minutes. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 

and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 

and guidelines. 

 

I report further that, during the audit period, there were no specific events/actions in pursuance of the above 

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s 

affairs.  

 

 

 

 

N.V.S.S. Suryanarayana Rao 

Company Secretary in Practice 

Membership Number: A5868 

Certificate of Practice Number: 2886 

Peer review Certificate No. 1506/2021 

 

UDIN: A005868G000876201 

 

Hyderabad, 28th July, 2025 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as’ Annexure A’ and forms an 

integral part of this report. 



ANNEXURE A’ 

 

To, 

Vamshi Rubber Limited 

'Vamshi House', Plot No. 41, 

Jayabheri Enclave, Gachibowli, 

Hyderabad, Telangana-500032 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test 

basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 

practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the company. 

 

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 

 

 

N.V.S.S. Suryanarayana Rao 

Company Secretary in Practice 

Membership Number: A5868 

Certificate of Practice Number: 2886 

Peer review Certificate No. 1506/2021 

 

UDIN: A005868G000876201 

 

Hyderabad, 28th July, 2025 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
Annexure-III 

 
CERTIFICATE BY A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 

[Pursuant to clause (i) of Point (10) of Para C of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 
I have examined the following documents: 
 
i. Declaration of non-disqualification as required under Section 164 of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’); 
ii. Disclosure of concern or interests as required under Section 184 of the Act; (hereinafter referred to as ‘relevant 

documents’), 
 
As submitted by the Directors of Vamshi Rubber Limited (‘the Company’) bearing CIN: L25100TG1993PLC016634 and 
having its registered office at ‘Vamshi House’, Plot No. 41, Jayabheri Enclave, Gachibowli, Hyderabad 500032, to the 
Board of Directors of the Company (‘the Board’) for the Financial Year 2024-25. I have considered non-disqualification 
to include non-debarment by Regulatory / Statutory Authorities. 
 
It is the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant documents with complete and accurate information in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act. 
 
Based on our examination of relevant documents made available to me by the Company and such other verifications 
carried out by me as deemed necessary and to the extent possible, in my opinion and to the best of our information 
and knowledge and according to the explanations provided by the Company, its officers and authorized 
representatives, we certify that as on date of this Certificate, none of the Directors on the Board of the Company, as 
listed hereunder, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company 
by Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 
 

Sr. No Name of Director Director Identification Number (DIN) 

1.  Mr. Ramesh Reddy Mereddy 00025101 

2.  Mr. Pasham Varun Kumar 00293972 

3.  Mr. Surendra Reddy Rachervu 00294240 

4.  Mr. Rajeev Reddy Yathapu 10934671 

5.  Mr. Akhila Pushpa Sundari 07194694 

6.  Mr. Subba Rao Mogili 10140999 

 
This Certificate has been issued at the request of the Company to make disclosure in its Board’s Report of the company 
for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 

Sd/- 

N.V.S.S. SURYANARAYANA RAO 

Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership Number: 5868 

Certificate of Practice Number: 2886 

Peer Review Certificate No. 1506/2021  
UDIN:  A005868G000983339 
 
Hyderabad, 12th August, 2025 
 
 



 
Annexure-IV 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 
 
The global industrial rubber market has grown strongly in recent years. The expansion observed in the historical period 
is linked to factors such as industrialization, the surge in the automotive sector, a boom in construction activities, 
advancements in material science, and increased demands for safety and enhanced performance standards. 
 
The global industrial rubber market is expected to see strong growth in the next few years. It is projected to grow from 
$11.48 billion in 2025 to $14.90 billion by 2030 at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.4%. Anticipated growth 
in the upcoming period can be credited to customization and innovation, supply chain streamlining, advancements 
within the healthcare and medical sectors, integration with Industry 4.0, and the continual evolution of material science. 
Key trends expected in this forecasted phase encompass compliance with regulatory benchmarks, strategic 
partnerships, ongoing product advancements, and the adoption of cutting-edge material technologies. 
 
Anticipated growth in the automotive industry is set to be a driving force for the industrial rubber market's expansion. 
This sector encompasses the manufacturing, wholesale, retail, and repair of automobiles. Factors like improved living 
standards, economic growth, and the aftermath of COVID-19 have significantly impacted purchasing power, fostering 
a surge in demand for personal mobility globally. Additionally, the global shift towards emission-free transportation, 
driven by climate concerns and the pursuit of net-zero emissions, has led to increased production of electric and hybrid 
vehicles. This heightened demand within the automotive sector has consequently surged the need for industrial rubber 
used extensively in vehicle interiors and exteriors. For instance, in April 2022, the European Automobile Manufacturers 
Association reported a global production of 79.1 million motor vehicles in 2021, signaling a remarkable influence on 
the industrial rubber market's growth trajectory. 
 
The escalating demand within the building and construction industry is poised to fuel growth in the industrial rubber 
market. This industry encompasses the planning, design, construction, and maintenance of structures and 
infrastructure. Industrial rubber finds widespread use in this sector due to its contributions such as durability, weather 
resistance, waterproofing, sealing, insulation, sound damping, and vibration isolation. Notably, projections by Oxford 
Economics in September 2021 indicated a significant surge in global construction output by 2030, expected to reach 
USD 15.2 trillion, marking a 42% increase of $4.5 trillion. This burgeoning demand within the building and construction 
industry acts as a significant catalyst for the growth of the industrial rubber market. 
 
INDIAN ECONOMIC REVIEW 
 
India continued its strong growth trajectory, recording an estimated GDP growth between 6.4% and 6.7% in FY2025-
26, closely aligning with the 6.5% growth recorded in FY2024-25. This performance reinforced India’s position as the 
second-fastest-growing economy among the G20 nations. The country's economic resilience was supported by robust 
domestic demand, increased government spending, and continued structural reforms. 
 
In FY 2023-24, the Indian government’s focus on capital expenditure played a critical role in driving economic activity. 
Government receipts (excluding borrowings) exceeded budget estimates by 6.5%, and the tax-to-GDP ratio improved 
by 11.1% year-on-year. The gross tax collections for FY 2023-24 reached ₹20.10 lakh crore, a 22% increase from the 
previous year. The Goods and Services Tax (GST) collections also reached new highs, with March 2025 recording the 
highest-ever monthly collection at ₹1.7 lakh crore. 
 
Per capita income rose to ₹240,000 during the year, reflecting a 9.3% increase from the previous year. India’s GDP 
per capita reached USD 2,880 in 2025, a critical threshold where consumption typically accelerates. 
 



Looking ahead, India is expected to grow at around 6.5% in FY 2025-26, driven by continued government investment 
in infrastructure, broad-based credit expansion, and a recovery in private sector investment. The moderation of inflation 
and improving capacity utilization across industries are expected to further support growth. 
 

1. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 

This report contains forward-looking statements based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. 
The Company, therefore, cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be 
authorize. The Company’s actual results, performance or achievements can thus differ materially from those 
projected in any such forward-looking statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, 
modify or revise any forward-looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or 
events. 

 
2. INDUSTRY STRUCTURES & DEVELOPMENTS 

 
As natural resources are limited, recycling has gained attention worldwide. Now companies are articulating a vision 
of using greater portion of recycled material in their products and formulations. The rubber industry is not an 
exception to this. End of life tires are an important source of recycled rubber worldwide and its status has changed 
from waste to resource. The reclaim rubber industry has been developed around this reality.  
 
A show-case project of benefits of circular economy. Actively promotes re-use of products derived from end-life-
tires (ELTs) into new tires, conveyor belts, road construction etc. 

 
3. OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS:  

 
Opportunities 

 
In light of the integrated recycling company's current position, it has the unique opportunity to capitalize on its robust 
supply chain capability and technological advancements. By leveraging a shared infrastructure, the company can 
effectively expand its operations while maximizing efficiencies. Furthermore, the potential to utilize customer 
approvals as a confidence-building tool will play a pivotal role in its expansion across various value chains.  
 
The company's strategic focus on establishing a sustainability footprint within aligned sectors positions it favorably 
in the market. Notably, the company has demonstrated commendable achievement s Infrastructure and other 
sectors.  
 
A crucial catalyst for the success of such integrated players in the recycling industry has been the introduction of 
the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) regulations by the Government of India (GOI). The incorporation of 
EPR for Tyres and Plastics, as well as nine other sectors of the economy, has incentivized brand owners and 
material manufacturers to invest in collaboration with material recovery and recycling companies. This collective 
effort aims to enhance value addition throughout the recycling process.  
 
In conclusion, the integrated recycling company possesses a strong foundation for future growth and success, 
bolstered by its ability to leverage supply chain capabilities, technological advancements, and customer approvals. 
With a steadfast commitment to sustainability and a track record of excellence in tyre and plastic recycling, the 
company is well-poised to make further strides in the market, guided by the supportive framework of the GOI's EPR 
regulations.  
 
· There are opportunities to reduce costs, with increased efficiency and economies of scale.  
 
· There is strong export demand for Crumb Rubber and Reclaim Rubber Compound and the same is being actively 

explored, besides the existing exports. 

 
Threats 



 

• End of life / Waste tyres are among the most problematic source of waste in the world. Incorrect disposal of 
old tyres can create all kinds of environmental and health hazards.  
 

• It is estimated that by recycling a kilo of rubber translates into saving 2 kilograms of greenhouse gases (INAE 
2015). If not recycled, tyres are an enormous global problem because of their nonbiodegradability, flammability 
and chemical composition.  
 

• Cost of the debt continue to be the key issue. Any increase in the interest rate will have negative impact on 
the portability of the Company 

 

• Invent of other better alternative product, in a fast-changing global environment. 
 

• Any increase in taxes and change in Government policies may have negative impact on the Company 

 
4. SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

 
The Company’s 87.5% of revenue is derived from manufacturing Precured Tread Rubber which is the main segment 
of the Company. 

 
5. OUTLOOK:  

 
In order to meet the changing market realities, your Company has been following the philosophy of providing the 
highest quality products and services at the lowest possible prices. All endeavours are made to achieve possible 
cost reduction in every area of operations. Your Company’s philosophy to provide high class quality products i.e. 
full value for money, to consumers would greatly benefit in the long run. In the otherwise increasing cost arena, 
every expense, whether capital or revenue is minutely reviewed to achieve all possible savings. 

  
6. RISKS AND CONCERNS:  
 

As our products are used for replacement of new tyres, we do not foresee any major threat from any change in the 
technology innovation by transportation industry. The company is obtaining adequate insurance coverage for the 
assets of the Plant and Field locations. Since, oil is a key raw material used for tire retreading; any fluctuations in 
oil prices are capable of causing fluctuations in retread tire market growth.  

 
The Company has no foreign exchange risk coverage due to its limited exposure. Compliance of safety 
requirements and norms placed by different Government agencies is a top priority of your management.  

 
7. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 
The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal controls in order to ensure that all assets are 
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use of disposition and that all transactions are authorized recorded 
and reported correctly. An Audit Committee headed by a non-executive independent Director is in place to review 
various areas of the control systems.   

 
8. DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:  
 

The details of the financial performance of the Company are appearing in the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account 
and other financial statements etc. appearing separately. Highlights for the year 2024-25 are as under:  
 

                           (Amount in Lakhs) 

Sales for the year 2024-25 8576.37 

Provision for taxation 17.60 



Profit after tax  67.63 

Paid up equity share capital as on 31st March, 2025 420.68 

 
The financial performance of the Company has been explained in the Directors’ Report of the Company for the year 
2024-25 appearing separately.  

 
9. HUMAN RESOURCES:  

 
During the year under review, the Company has undertaken extensive steps in optimizing the man power at the 
Plant, corporate office and Field locations. Employee/employer relations were cordial throughout the year. 
Measures for safety of the employees, training and development continued to receive top priorities.  

 
10. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:  

 
Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s views about the industry, 
expectations/predictions, objectives etc, may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable laws and 
regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Company’s operations may 
inter-alia affect with the supply and demand situations, input prices and their availability, changes in Government 
regulations, tax laws and other factors such as Industrial relations and economic developments etc. Investors should 
bear the above in mind.  
 
 

 
     By order of the Board  

                                For Vamshi Rubber Limited 
    

               
                  Sd/-    Sd/- 

            R. Surendra Reddy              M. Ramesh Reddy 
            Managing Director & CEO           Chairman & CFO 

                 DIN: 00294240              DIN: 00025101 
 
 

Date: 14th August, 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CERTIFICATE OF THE CEO/CFO TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VAMSHI RUBBER LIMITED 
 

We hereby certify that: 
 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 and 
that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 
i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 
 

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 
B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the 

year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.  
 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting 
and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such 
internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

 
D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 

 
i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

 
ii) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements; and 
 

iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 
the management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting. 

 

              
     By order of the Board  

                                For Vamshi Rubber Limited 
    

               
                  Sd/-    Sd/- 

            R. Surendra Reddy              M. Ramesh Reddy 
            Managing Director & CEO           Chairman & CFO 

                 DIN: 00294240              DIN: 00025101 
 
 

Date: 14th August, 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 

 
 
 


















































































































